
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

(Public Comment during Public Hearing or Agenda item comment)

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to address the Committee during such period is required to sign in with the City
Clerk prior to the meeting between 5:00 p.m. and 5:15 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or anytime between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in the
Office of the City Clerk. They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be directed to
the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12) copies
should be made available, and may not be returned.
 

Agenda
Public Works Committee

January 16, 2018
5:30 P.M. - City Council Chambers

 

           
1. Consider approval of Public Works Committee minutes of January 2, 2018.
 

2. Consider approval of the recommendation by the City of Muskogee Foundation Board of
Directors appointing Perline Boyattia and Tim McElroy, each to serve a six (6) year term
beginning August 1, 2017, and ending July 31, 2023, and appointing Aaron George replacing
Tracy Hoos, James Gulley replacing Jay Updike, and Jerri Stoutermire replacing Leroy Walker,
each to serve a six (6) year term beginning August 1, 2018, and ending July 31, 2024, or take
other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

 

3. Consider approval of Resolution 2711 concerning bridge inspection responsibility by the City of
Muskogee for compliance with National Bridge Inspection Standards, or take any other
necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

4. Consider approval of a one (1) year renewal of the Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract, as
negotiated, with SignalTek, Inc., including, but not limited to the repair, installation, maintenance
and twenty-four hour call for traffic signals as recommended by Staff, or take any other
necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

5. Consider approval of awarding the Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport Terminal Apron
Hard-stand construction project in the bid to Ross Construction in the amount of
$79,500.00, subject to approval of the Airport Board and finalization of the Oklahoma
Aeronautics Commission grant funding, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

 

6. Consider approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Sooner Addition, consisting of one (1) lot
on 2.83 acres, located on the north side of Harris Road, east of Country Club Road, or take other
necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)  

 

  A tract of land in the SW/4 SE/4 SW/4 of Section 8, T15N, R19E of the I.B.&M., Muskogee



  A tract of land in the SW/4 SE/4 SW/4 of Section 8, T15N, R19E of the I.B.&M., Muskogee
County, State of Oklahoma, said tract of land being more particularly described by metes and
bounds as follows: Commencing at the SW corner of Section 8, thence N88°48'09"E a distance
of 1407.17 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing N88°48'09"E a distance of 60.54
feet; thence N1°39'57"W a distance of 172.51 feet; thence N88°48'09"E a distance of 85.00
feet; thence N1°34'35"W a distance of 488.97 feet; thence S88°43'34"W a distance of 231.30
feet; thence S1°39'57"E a distance of 488.67 feet; thence N88°48'09"E a distance of 85.00 feet;
thence S1°39'57"E a distance of 172.51 feet to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 2.83 Acres,
more or less.

 

7. Receive presentation of the year-to-date progress on the implementation of the City of
Muskogee Safety Plan, and provide necessary direction to Staff. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO CHAIRMAN AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to speak is
required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the particular issue they wish to
address. Under Oklahoma law, the Committee Members are prohibited from discussing or taking any
action on items not on today’s agenda. If written materials are to be submitted to the Committee twelve
(12) copies should be made available, and may not be returned.



   
Public Works Committee 1.           
Meeting Date: 01/16/2018  
Initiator: Ashley Wallace, Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Public Works Committee minutes of January 2, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
01-02-2018 pwmin 



MINUTES
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE

January 2, 2018

The Public Works Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, January 2,
2018 in Council Chambers, Third Floor, Municipal Building, with the following in attendance: 

Present:  Mayor John R. Coburn; Deputy Mayor James Gulley; Committee Member Janey Boydston;
Committee Member Patrick Cale; Committee Member Marlon Coleman; Committee Member Dan
Hall; Committee Member Wayne Johnson; Committee Member Derrick Reed; Committee Member
Ivory Vann 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Asst City Manager; Roy Tucker, City Attorney; Tammy
L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works Director; Matthew
Beese, Assistant City Attorney; Donnie Wimbely, Purchasing Manager; Mark Wilkerson, Parks &
Recreation Director; Jean Kingston, City Treasurer; Michael O'Dell, Fire Chief; Kelly Plunkett,
Human Resources Director; Rex Eskridge, Police Chief 

 

               
1.      Consider approval of Public Works Committee minutes of December 5, 2017.   
 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Janey Boydston to approve Public Works Committee minutes of December 5,
2017. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey
Boydston, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne Johnson,
Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2.      (No Action Taken):  Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No.

4037-A rezoning the property located at 2312 Augusta Street, more particularly described in the
Ordinance, from "C-1" Local Commercial District to "R-1" Single-Family Residential, and if
approved, authorize Staff to revise the Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change, or
take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

Deputy Mayor James Gulley opened the Public Hearing

Planning Director Gary Garvin stated the Planning Commission did not have a quorum the
morning of January 2, 2018, therefore they could not hear the request to make a
recommendation.  The Planning Department will need to republish and send out new notices. 
A meeting has been rescheduled and set for February 5, 2018.

Deputy Mayor James Gulley closed the Public Hearing.

  

 
3.      Consider approval of Resolution No. 2710 accepting a Dedication Deed for 1,800 square feet of

property, as described in the Dedication Deed, for the purpose of establishing a public street at
the intersection of Haskell Boulevard and Country Club Road, or take other necessary action.
(Gary Garvin)

  



 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Dan Hall, seconded by Committee Member

Janey Boydston to approve Resolution No. 2710 accepting a Dedication Deed for 1,800
square feet of property, as described in the Dedication Deed, for the purpose of establishing
a public street at the intersection of Haskell Boulevard and Country Club Road. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey
Boydston, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne Johnson,
Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
4.      Consider approval to dedicate a columbarium plot at Greenhill Cemetery to its late

Superintendent, Vernon Martin, waiving costs related thereto, or take other necessary action.
(Councilor Patrick Cale)

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Dan Hall  to approve dedication of a columbarium plot at Greenhill
Cemetery to its late Superintendent, Vernon Martin, waiving costs related thereto. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey
Boydston, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne Johnson,
Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO CHAIRMAN AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to speak is
required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the particular issue they wish to
address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are prohibited from discussing or taking any action on
items not on today’s agenda. If written materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should
be made available, and may not be returned.
                                                                

CHAIRMAN JAMES GULLEY
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE      

    

  pwmin
TT/aw    



   
Public Works Committee 2.           
Meeting Date: 01/16/2018  
Initiator: Marsha Wiseman, Admin Assistant
Department: City Manager
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the recommendation by the City of Muskogee Foundation Board of Directors
appointing Perline Boyattia and Tim McElroy, each to serve a six (6) year term beginning August 1,
2017, and ending July 31, 2023, and appointing Aaron George replacing Tracy Hoos, James Gulley
replacing Jay Updike, and Jerri Stoutermire replacing Leroy Walker, each to serve a six (6) year term
beginning August 1, 2018, and ending July 31, 2024, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

BACKGROUND:
Per the bylaws of the City of Muskogee Foundation, their board appointments are submitted by the City
of Muskogee Foundation Board of Directors for City Council approval.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the recommendation of the City of Muskogee Foundation Board of Directors for their
2017/2018 board appointments.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Public Works Committee 3.           
Meeting Date: 01/16/2018  
Submitted For: Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd,

Office
Administrator
I

Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Jessica Zwirtz, CAD Technician; Jim

Wixom, Assistant Director of Public Works-Operations; David Garner,
Street Superintendent 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Resolution 2711 concerning bridge inspection responsibility by the City of
Muskogee for compliance with National Bridge Inspection Standards, or take any other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The City of Muskogee is required to participate in the State of Oklahoma Bridge inspection program. 
This program is funded with 100% Federal funds.  The Oklahoma Department of Transportation
(ODOT) provided four (4) options for participation they are:
1.  Select one of ODOT's overqualified engineering firms.
2.  Elect to do bridge safety inspections with your own forces using inspection teams and an oversight
engineer fully qualified as mandated by the NBIS (National Bridge Inspection Standards).
3.  Enter into an agreement using the same consultant as Muskogee County.
4.  Let ODOT make selection.

It is recommended that the City adopt option one (1) as the most viable, in that the State of Oklahoma
pays the selected inspection firm.  A Selection Committee was formed and Infrastructure Engineers Inc.,
received the overall highest ranking and it is recommended that this firm be designated as the firm to
inspect the bridges within the City.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Resolution 2711 concerning bridge inspection responsibility by the City of Muskogee for
compliance with National Bridge Inspection Standards designating Infrastructure Engineers Inc., as the
City of Muskogee bridge inspectors for the period of April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2020.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
2711 RES 01-22-2018 Bridge Inspection 
Bridge Letter 
Bridge Inspectors 
Bridge Interview Results 





 

            RESOLUTION NO.  2711 
 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING BRIDGE INSPECTION 
RESPONSIBILITYBY LOCAL GOVERNMENT FOR 
COMPLIANCE WITH NATIONAL BRIDGE INSPECTION 
STANDARDS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee has the responsibility to properly follow-up with 

critical findings discovered during routine and fracture critical bridge inspections; and 
 

WHEREAS, due to the failure of some non - DOT bridge owners to properly follow 
up with critical findings discovered during routine and fracture critical bridge inspections of 
the local system, the Department of Transportation has been found in non compliance with 
FHWA Metric 21; and 

 
WHEREAS, as of October 1, 2014, the Department's procedure for notifying and 

follow up for critical findings for local owners is detailed in the ODOT Pontis Bridge 
Inspection Manual, Appendix I; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Muskogee must acknowledge the required memorandum 

with a signed document provided by the state; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee is currently in compliance with our bridges; 
 

   NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved, by the City of Muskogee that it is their desire to 
select option one and choose Infrastructure Engineering, Inc. as the City’s bridge inspector for a 
period from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2020. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Muskogee that 
the City of Muskogee understands requirements set forth by the Federal and State regulations 
pertaining to critical findings, load postings and bridge closings. 

 
 
 

ADOPTED this     day of February 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

John R. Coburn, Mayor 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Tammy Tracy, City Clerk 
 



 

 

REVIEWED as to form and legality this  day of   February , 2018. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Roy Tucker, City Attorney 

(SEAL) 















   
Public Works Committee 4.           
Meeting Date: 01/16/2018  
Submitted For: Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd,

Office
Administrator
I

Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Jim Wixom, Assistant Director of

Public Works-Operations; Morris Baxter, Traffic Supervisor 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of a one (1) year renewal of the Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract, as negotiated,
with SignalTek, Inc., including, but not limited to the repair, installation, maintenance and twenty-four
hour call for traffic signals as recommended by Staff, or take any other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
This agreement in its original form has been active since March 13, 2014.  SignalTek and the City have
continued to exercise their renewal option as provided for in the maintenance contract since this time. 
The pricing has changed from $25.00 to $30.00 per month per signal in this agreement.  There are 45
total signals covered under this contract.  The agreement has also been adjusted to better fit our needs
with regard to repair items.  This agreement, at the election of the City of Muskogee can be extended on
an annual basis.

SignalTek has done an exceptional job with this agreement to date and we have had no issues. 
Therefore, we believe it is in the City's best interest to continue this agreement with SignalTek, as
negotiated, for the future work.

The previous cost is budgeted in the Traffic Signal Account and there are adequate funds in this account
to cover the increase for the remainder of the year.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve renewal of the Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract, as negotiated, with SignalTek, Inc. that
includes but is not limited to the repair, installation, maintenance and 24 hour call for traffic signals and
flashing school signals as recommended by Staff.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Budgeted out of account number 100-6040-431-30-35 Contractual Services/Maintenance Contract. 
 

Attachments
SignalTek Agreement 





















   
Public Works Committee 5.           
Meeting Date: 01/16/2018  
Submitted For:  Drew Saffell, Assistant City Manager 
Initiator: Drew Saffell, Airport Manager
Department: Assistant City Manager
Staff Information Source: Drew Saffell 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of awarding the Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport Terminal Apron Hard-stand
construction project in the bid to Ross Construction in the amount of $79,500.00, subject to approval of
the Airport Board and finalization of the Oklahoma Aeronautics Commission grant funding, or take
other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
The City advertised and solicited for Bid proposals and received eight (8) proposals. 

Ross Construction $79,500.001.
Dirt Works $121,212.502.
BL Tower Construction $124,175.003.
Contech, Inc. $127,847.504.
Cook Consulting LLC $155,650.005.
GCC Enterprises $164,400.006.
A-Tech Paving $164,475.007.
Neece Concrete Construction, Inc. $165,006.008.

The Bid proposal submitted by Ross Construction was complete, the most economical, and meets the
requirements for the City.  The bid tabulation sheet is attached for your reference.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve awarding the Terminal Apron Hard-stand construction project in the bid amount of $79,500.00
to Ross Construction, contingent upon approval of the Airport Board, and contingent upon finalization
of the Oklahoma Aeronautics Commission grant funding, or take other necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:

Oklahoma Aeronautics Commission discretionary funds $75,525.00 (95%)

City of Muskogee Sponsor Share, Airport funds $3,975.00 (5%)

Attachments
Bid Tabulation Sheet 





ITEM SPEC. ESTIMATED UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT
NO. NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

1 GP-105 Mobilization LS 1 $13,200.00 $13,200.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $10,350.00 $10,350.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $24,000.00 $24,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $28,800.00 $28,800.00
2 SS-303-5.1 Aggregate Base (Type A) CY 375 $60.00 $22,500.00 $40.00 $15,000.00 $115.66 $43,372.50 $49.00 $18,375.00 $48.00 $18,000.00 $50.00 $18,750.00 $58.00 $21,750.00 $76.00 $28,500.00 $49.00 $18,375.00
3 SS-325-5.1 Separator Fabric SY 1,100 $1.50 $1,650.00 $1.00 $1,100.00 $1.50 $1,650.00 $2.00 $2,200.00 $1.10 $1,210.00 $1.50 $1,650.00 $3.00 $3,300.00 $2.25 $2,475.00 $2.60 $2,860.00
4

SS-414-5.1
Portland Cement Concrete Pavement 
(9” Thickness)

SY 1,050 $68.00 $71,400.00 $48.00 $50,400.00 $52.00 $54,600.00 $65.00 $68,250.00 $54.00 $56,700.00 $75.00 $78,750.00 $74.00 $77,700.00 $75.00 $78,750.00 $78.02 $81,921.00

5 P-152-4.1 Unclassified Excavation CY 650 $15.00 $9,750.00 $10.00 $6,500.00 $24.75 $16,087.50 $20.00 $13,000.00 $33.75 $21,937.50 $50.00 $32,500.00 $31.00 $20,150.00 $45.00 $29,250.00 $27.00 $17,550.00
6 P-152-4.2 Unsuitable Excavation CY 500 $22.00 $11,000.00 $10.00 $5,000.00 $3.00 $1,500.00 $24.00 $12,000.00 $35.00 $17,500.00 $8.00 $4,000.00 $35.00 $17,500.00 $32.00 $16,000.00 $31.00 $15,500.00

         
 

TOTALS $129,500.00 $79,500.00 $121,210.00 $124,175.00 $127,847.50 $155,650.00 $164,400.00 $164,475.00 $165,006.00

Corrected Prices

Date

January 8, 2018

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

MUSKOGEE DAVIS REGIONAL AIRPORT (MKO)

APRON HARDSTAND

BID TABULATION

BID OPENING: JANUARY 4, 2018; 2:00 PM

low bidder 2nd low bidder 3rd low bidder 4th low bidder 5th low bidder 6th low bidder

Contech, Inc. BL Tower ConstructionDirt WurxRoss Construction

7th low bidder 8th low bidder

Neece Concrete 

Constructoin , Inc.A-Tech PavingGCC Enterprises, Inc.Cook's Consulting, LLC

1 of 1 Garver Project No. 17031560



   
Public Works Committee 6.           
Meeting Date: 01/16/2018  
Initiator: Gary Garvin, Planning Director

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Sooner Addition, consisting of one (1) lot on 2.83
acres, located on the north side of Harris Road, east of Country Club Road, or take other necessary
action. (Gary D. Garvin)  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A tract of land in the SW/4 SE/4 SW/4 of Section 8, T15N, R19E of the I.B.&M., Muskogee County,
State of Oklahoma, said tract of land being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:
Commencing at the SW corner of Section 8, thence N88°48'09"E a distance of 1407.17 feet to the Point
of Beginning; thence continuing N88°48'09"E a distance of 60.54 feet; thence N1°39'57"W a distance of
172.51 feet; thence N88°48'09"E a distance of 85.00 feet; thence N1°34'35"W a distance of 488.97 feet;
thence S88°43'34"W a distance of 231.30 feet; thence S1°39'57"E a distance of 488.67 feet; thence
N88°48'09"E a distance of 85.00 feet; thence S1°39'57"E a distance of 172.51 feet to the Point of
Beginning.  Containing 2.83 Acres, more or less.

BACKGROUND:
The applicants, Randy and Cindy Garroutte, has indicated the property is being platted into one (1) lot
on 2.83 acres to allow the property to be developed residentially.  The applicant is proposing to build a
new single-family dwelling on the property.  Subdivision Review Committee reviewed the Preliminary
and Final Plats, and recommended approval with conditions (all conditions have been complied with).

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Approve the Preliminary and Final Plat of Sooner Addition.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Preliminary & Final Plat - Sooner Addition 







   
Public Works Committee 7.           
Meeting Date: 01/16/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Dakota Jones, Safety

Manager
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Receive presentation of the year-to-date progress on the implementation of the City of Muskogee Safety
Plan, and provide necessary direction to Staff. (Roy D. Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
On December 6, 2016, the City of Muskogee Safety Plan was approved by City Council.  This plan set
out to create a culture of safety in the city by completing consistent safety training, safety committee
meetings, and worksite inspections. Presented will be a review of the year's efforts in safety management.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Discuss and receive presentation from Safety Manager, Dakota Jones on the year to date progress of
implementation of the City's safety plan. Provide direction to staff as necessary.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	_1.   _1.__7009
	    01-02-2018 pwmin
	_2.   _2._COMF Board Appointments Confirmation
	_3.   _3._Resolution 2711
	    2711 RES 01-22-2018 Bridge Inspection
	    Bridge Letter
	    Bridge Inspectors
	    Bridge Interview Results
	_4.   _4._Approval of one-year renewal of the Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract, as negotiated, with SignalTek, Inc.
	    SignalTek Agreement
	_5.   _5._Airport Terminal Apron Hard-stand Bid Approval 
	    Bid Tabulation Sheet
	_6.   _6._Preliminary & Final Plat - Sooner Addition
	    Preliminary and Final Plat - Sooner Addition
	_7.   _7._Safety Plan Update

